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this elevation is seventy-seven feet in width and faced with polished white Maine granite set in
rectangular panels that mirror the dimensions of the adjacent curtain wall’s glass and metal
panels. Twelve regularly spaced fixed windows, six each in the second and third stories, are
aligned horizontally with the curtain wall windows and each is separated by two granite panels
from the window to either side. The only change made to this primary fagade of the building has
been the removal of signage. Centrally placed below the second-floor windows, against the white
granite background, large green lettering once placed horizontally spelled out “THE SAGINAW
NEWS.” What remains of this absent feature is a series of small holes in the granite surface
indicating where the signage was once placed. Also missing are four internally illuminated
stainless steel block letters that, angled vertically to spell “NEWS,” were once viewable at a
distance from the north and east. The location of this missing feature is also evidenced by anchor
holes along the two-foot projection of granite facing north.

West and South Elevations

The west elevation fronts Water Street with the Saginaw River in the distance. It continues the
north elevation’s curtain wall construction in the upper two stories and along the south end of the
ground story. The west elevation has a length of 125" and height of forty-eight feet. The overall
length includes a twenty-two-foot long wall of white glazed face brick off the northwest corner
that provides support for the west end of the loading dock canopy off the north elevation. The
white glazed brick continues southward forming all of the fagade’s ground story except for the
short section of curtain wall near the southwest corner, and contains three overhead steel garage
doors. The west fagade rests on a low concrete foundation.

When the building was constructed the south (rear) elevation closely adjoined two slightly lower
neighboring structures, with only a foot wide space between. Those two structures have since
been demolished, leaving the News Building’s south fagade exposed. The south elevation was
and remains purely utilitarian, absent of any window or door fenestration. It is 240’ in length
between Water Street to the west and South Washington Avenue to the east and forty-eight feet
in height. The wall is faced in glazed face brick in the upper portions that rose above the
adjoining buildings and in plain common brick where formerly hidden by them. Following
removal of the neighboring structures the common brick was painted white.

Penthouse

The roof contains a mechanical penthouse that occupies forty per cent of the roof surface and has
overall dimensions of 121’ by sixty-eight by fourteen feet. Its elevations are faced with a
vertically ribbed, pre-finished, metal panel system. A series of louvers piercing the walls serve
the building’s HV/AC and ventilation systems.

Interior

All Saginaw News department locations in the building were designed with space left over for
future expansion amounting to more than a third of the 106,000 square feet of floor space left
unused. In addition, moveable mechanical walls installed throughout the interior allowed for
easy reassignment of space when needed. Original furnishings and printing equipment have been
removed; however, the majority of original fixtures and finishes remain intact.

Sections 7-11 p.7






United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018
3agine:\g Ne':tvys Building Saginaw Co., MI
ame of Prope

Office, vault, employee restrooms, and locker rooms. In the center of the open floor moveable
partitions subdivide space between the Accounting, Classified and Circulation departments.

Walking west down the main corridor from the lobby and through a pair of double doors, the
corridor continues to a glazed brick wall. Turning at the wall toward the north/right leads to an
exterior exit, while turning south/left takes one into a corridor that separates Operations to the
east/left and Distribution/Manufacturing to the west/right. Proceeding south to the end of this
corridor a turn west/right leads into the Distribution/Manufacturing Department and onto floor
space designated as the mail room. This space backs up to walls to the south and west that
enclose the Press Room that contained the Goss Headliner press. The Goss Headliner was a
massive piece of printing equipment anchored below the floor surface and extending up into the
floor space above. Along the building’s north exterior elevation a series of openings
accommodated the transferring of bundled newspapers onto delivery trucks positioned at the
loading dock just outside.

Second Floor

The primary approach to the second floor is gained by elevator or staircase from the ground-floor
lobby space. The elevator and staircase land along the main second-floor corridor; exiting the
stairs or elevator an individual faces south. The main corridor on the second floor is finished
with the same marble used on the first floor. Turning to the left/east off the elevator or stairs,
doors along the right/south wall lead into the newsroom. Doors along the left/north corridor wall
lead into a three-room suite that consists in progressive order of a conference room, secretarial
space, and executive corner office. Each of the three rooms is finished with ash wall paneling,
and the conference room and office have fixed single-light windows facing north with built-in
bookcases between the floor and window sill. The office, occupied by the Editor, has windows
facing north and east, with a dedicated door along an interior north-facing wall that opens into
the adjacent newsroom space. The newsroom is centrally positioned between the north, south
and east elevations. The perimeter of the newsroom floor is occupied by a series of small offices
that face east. Support services such as a library occupied the southeast corner and extended
west/right along the building’s south side. Photo and microfiche files, interview rooms, photo
office and wire service space are located along the west/right side of newsroom floor against the
south exterior wall and extend north to the main corridor. All of these spaces have maintained
their original footprint; the original rubberized tile material over the majority of the newsroom
floor has been replaced with vinyl flooring,

Exiting to the right/west off the elevator the main corridor leads through a glass door with
sidelights framed in stainless steel. Beyond this door the corridor turns left/south, then to the
right/west. Beyond the west turn the corridor walls are mechanical partitions. Behind the
left/south corridor wall is the photo work area, equipped with black rooms and studio space.
Behind the right/north corridor wall is a meeting room that extends over to the building’s north
exterior wall. West of the photo space is a large unutilized space. The corridor terminates at a
kitchen and cafeteria space inside the west exterior wall. One-third of the second-floor space was
occupied by the upper level of the Press Room containing the Goss Headliner press equipment
that extended through the floor from the ground level below.
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Third Floor

The primary approach to the third floor is the same elevator or a continuation of the staircase
used in accessing the second floor below. The elevator and staircase land along the main third-
floor corridor and face south. The main corridor on the third floor is finished with the same
marble used in the lobby and second-floor corridors. Turning to the left/east off the elevator or
staircase a few steps lead through a glass door that, trimmed in stainless steel, opens into a space
used for National Advertising along the building’s north side. A doorway beyond to the east
leads into a private northeast corner office. Turning right and then facing south, the Advertising
and then Art Department occupied spaces along the building’s east outer wall to the south outer
wall. Turning to the right/west, the Dispatch Department was positioned west of the Advertising
Department. South of the Dispatch Department against the south outer wall are restrooms and
locker rooms.

Turning right/west from the elevator, passing through a doorway, a proof-reading room against
the building’s north outer wall stands to the right/north. Facing west is the largest expanse of
open floor space in the building. All composing functions were carried out in this centrally
positioned floor space. The monotype room was positioned against the north outer wall west of
the proof-reading room. A stairwell is located at the building’s northwest corner. To the
left/south along the west side is a freight elevator. Adjacent left/south of the freight elevator is
space for stereotype functions. The remaining space along the west side wall has a quarry tile
floor. This space extends to the building’s southwest corner. The interior space with this flooring
material was intended for future engraving use. With the exception of quarry tile the flooring
used throughout this section of the third floor is the original hard maple, a preferred wood
surface for areas that experience high-impact conditions such as factory floors. Some portions of
the existing wood surface have suffered significant warping, indicative of unstable
environmental conditions and water damage.

Basement

Primary approach into the basement is a set of stairs in a stairwell positioned in the building’s
northwest corner. Turning left/east and looking across the cavernous expanse of space, eighteen
structural support columns are visible. According to original Frantz & Spence drawings from
1958, the foundation system consists of a reinforced concrete mat across the entire basement
surface covered with a three-inch layer of concrete. Basement walls are of reinforced concrete,
many surfaced with glazed masonry.

Around the perimeter of this space are a sequence of defined spaces of varied size and intended
function. The primary function of the basement was printing material storage. The inventory of
materials often included 500 tons of newsprint and 5200 gallon storage tanks for ink. The
movement of these materials between floors was aided by a large freight elevator, smaller
elevator and Newsprint Lowerator, all positioned along the west side. To move the massive rolls
of newsprint a conveyor belt placed in the center of the floor space was utilized. Not all
designated basement space was used in the storage of printing materials; a significant portion
was occupied by dedicated maintenance, telephone, office supply and printing press control
rooms.
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Little brought the first printing press to Saginaw. In true pioneering and entrepreneurial spirit
John P. Hosmer would print the first town newspaper called The Saginaw Journal.

I. The Saginaw News’ earliest direct predecessor dates back to 1859, when the first edition of a
weekly newspaper known as The East Saginaw Courier was published by George F. Lewis. In
1868 the Saginaw Daily Courier began and the weekly publication was phased out. In 1889 the
Courier acquired the Saginaw Daily Herald, and the two were merged into the Courier-Herald,
This paper was owned at different times by two Michigan Governors, Aaron T. Bliss (Governor
1901-1904) and Chase S. Osborn (Governor 1911-1912).

II. In 1881 what became the second predecessor of the Saginaw News was launched with the
birth of the Saginaw Evening News by Joseph Seemann and Charles H. Peters.

Purchase by the Booths

In 1910 George and his brother Ralph H. Booth, Charles M. Greenway, and two other investors
purchased the Saginaw Evening News, and in 1918 they also acquired the Courier-Herald. The
two papers were consolidated into the Saginaw News Courier, which was renamed the Saginaw
Daily News in 1927. In 1936 the newspaper was renamed one last time as the Saginaw News.

Booth Newspapers

Booth Newspapers can be said to have begun with the 1873 establishment of The Evening News
in Detroit by James E. Scripps. Beginning in 1888 Scripps’ son-in-law George E. Booth
gradually assumed leadership of what became The Detroit News. Separate from the Scripps
newspapers (in the 1890s Scripps also owned papers in Cleveland, Cincinnati, and St. Louis),
Booth began to acquire Michigan newspapers in 1893 with the acquisition and consolidation of
two Grand Rapids newspapers into the Grand Rapids Press. George’s younger brother Ralph H.
Booth also began acquiring his own group of Michigan newspapers with the 1905 purchase and
consolidation of two Jackson papers. George and Ralph with other investors together bought the
Muskegon Chronicle in 1907, the Saginaw Evening News in 1910, and the Flint Evening Journal
in 1911. In 1914 the Booths merged all their newspaper interests into a Booth Publishing
Company, Additional southern Michigan newspapers were purchased in Jackson in 1918, Ann
Arbor in 1919, and Kalamazoo in 1922 (Pound, 211-19), and others followed over the years. The
company was later reorganized as Booth Newspapers, Inc. Beginning with the Detroit News and
Grand Rapids Press and continuing until the 1976 purchase of the company by Newhouse
Newspapers, Booth Newspapers had built a large-scale portfolio of prominent newspaper
publications in southern Michigan cities including Detroit, Flint, Ann Arbor, Grand Rapids and
Jackson. So well respected was the Booth brand in the publishing business that Newhouse and
subsequent owners would continue to operate in Michigan under this long established name.

The Booth family was notable not simply for their success in newspaper publishing but also for
their use of substantial parts of the proceeds in making significant philanthropic contributions in
the fields of education, art, design and architecture. In 1904 Booth newspaper chain founder
George Gough Booth and his wife Ellen Scripps Booth purchased over 300 acres in Bloomfield
Hills, Michigan, northwest of Detroit, for an estate. Before long the Booths were spearheading
and largely financing the development of what has become the Cranbrook Educational
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Saginaw News, 9/18/1960). The firm remains in business today with offices in Ann Arbor and
Traverse City as well as Saginaw.

In its architectural design, the Saginaw News Building utilizes the curtain wall construction of
large glass lights and porcelain enameled metal panels that came into use as a characteristic
feature of International style buildings in the post-World War II era and also makes much use of
the relatively costly granite and marble sometimes used in these buildings.

Porcelain-enameled steel panels as a finish for building walls date back to the 1920s and came
into substantial use, particularly for smaller commercial buildings, during the 1930s, providing a
smooth finish that contributed much to the sleek stylishness of the early modern architecture of
the time labelled Moderne in style. In the early post-World War II years as the earlier Moderne
in architecture transitioned into the International style, a previously unknown form of fagcade
construction, known as curtain wall construction, in which non-load-bearing wall sections
formed of horizontal bands of large-light windows above metal panel spandrels were supported
on the walls’ structural framing, began to come into common use. In the 1919-21 period Mies
van der Rohe, then a young architect in Germany, prepared several (unexecuted) studies for tall
buildings with glass curtain walls. Architect Pietro Belluschi’s 1946-48 Equitable Savings &
Loan Association Building in Portland, Oregon, is generally considered a pioneer example of the
general type, though with its glass and aluminum panel wall sections outlined by the polished
aluminum-clad horizontal and vertical structural members rather than suspended from their outer
faces (Clausen, 167; McCallum, 79). The 1947-50 United Nations Secretariat Building in New
York, designed by Wallace K. Harrison (as director of planning, working with an International
Design Board of architects), used glass curtain walls — window bands of blue-green Thermopane
windows over tempered wire glass spandrels — for the major elevations, with marble for the
building’s narrow end walls (Newhouse, 127-28, see 116-40 in general).

New York’s Lever House office building, designed by Gordon Bunshaft of architects Skidmore,
Owings & Merrill and completed in 1952, is regarded as having been particularly influential in
promoting the widespread acceptance and use of curtain wall construction because of its widely
admired design and generous provision of public space. As in the all-glass curtain-wall U. N.
Secretariat Building, the building was faced in glass windows above glass spandrels, in this case
blue-green glass windows above wire glass-faced spandrels backed by concrete block masonry
(Architectural Record Editors, Commercial Buildings, 20-25). The 1960 Office Buildings, a
compilation of articles from Architectural Record generally from the 1957-60 period, makes
clear that, as James S. Hornbeck stated in his article “The New Skyscraper” published in the
book, “The lightweight curtain-wall has come of age in the form of a modular, industrial unit.
For its facing, a variety of materials have been used, tried, or dreamed of — with more to come:
glass, plastics, thin stone, metals, ceramics, etc.” (Office Buildings, 3). Examples of larger
buildings presented in the book illustrating practices current as the Saginaw News Building was
being designed and built tended to use glass spandrel panels of various types (see, for example,
Libbey-Owens-Ford Glass Co. Building, Toledo, 93-102; Crown Zellerbach Building, San
Francisco, 127-36; and Seagram Building, New York, 142-50).
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Detroit’s and perhaps Michigan’s first post-war curtain wall structure was the Federal Reserve
Bank of Chicago Detroit Branch Annex designed by Minoru Yamasaki, then head designer at the
Detroit firm Smith, Hinchman & Grylls, and constructed in 1949-51. The building’s spandrels
were made of white marble panels (Savage). But more typical of the new generation of curtain
wall International style buildings of the 1950s and 60s are those in which the spandrels are of
porcelain enameled steel panels such as those used in the Saginaw News Building. The General
Motors Technical Center research park at Warren, north of Detroit, designed by Eero Saarinen
and constructed in its first phase in the 1949-56 period, likely offered among the earliest
Michigan examples of the use of steel panels in curtain wall construction. By the later 1950s
when the Saginaw News Building was being designed, steel panel curtain walls were becoming
common in Michigan’s cities and acrossthe nation. As in many of the larger International style
buildings of the time, such as New York’s 1954-58 Seagram Building (Mies van der Rohe and
Philip Johnson, architects), where pink granite and green and gray-green marble were used in
parts of the exterior, high tone building materials such as granite and marble in different hues
used in different locations as decorative accents were also popular.

The building’s design also incorporates another feature intended to shelter the main entry and
separate it from the building’s loading docks, located along the same side. This is a landscaped
plaza at the northeast corner close to South Washington, a key business street in the downtown.
The plaza both serves as a forecourt for the building’s main entrance but also screens a loading
dock and parking area that is located along the same side of the building, but back farther from S.
Washington on a side street. The plaza with its raised planting beds and shrubs and trees was
planned by Birmingham, Michigan, landscape architects Wilcox and Laird. The firm’s work is
thus far not well documented: only one other example of their work, the landscaping for The
Jeffersonian, a thirty-story apartment tower in Detroit designed by Giffels & Rosetti, Inc., and
built in the early 1960s, was located in the course of research for this nomination (Paul, 176).

Carefully planned landscaping, including open landscaped plazas, became a common, even
characteristic, feature of larger International style buildings with their development after World
War II. The new breed of office parks that proliferated in the wake of the publicity generated by
the construction of key early examples including the 1949-56 General Motors Technical Center
and the Connecticut General Life Insurance Company complex in Bloomfield, Connecticut,
completed in 1957, were set in landscaped grounds and contained landscaped plazas and
courtyards (von Eckardt, 110-13). Of the landscaped space in front of the GM Technical Center,
it was stated, “It has been designed for people who walk, relax, and need a change of pace from
work” (von Eckardt, 111-12). The concept of open, landscaped plaza spaces in an urban
environment got a strong boost with New York’s Lever House office building, with its open
ground level with a central courtyard whose plantings continued into the enclosed lobby space
and its third-floor rooftop plaza surrounding the central court. Closer to Saginaw, an early
example of a post-World War II office building with a plaza-fronted entry was Yamasaki’s
(previously noted) 1949-51 Federal Reserve Detroit Annex.
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Boundary Justification

The boundary of the nominated property includes all land currently associated with the building.
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